

SIXTY FIFTH LEGISLATURE - REGULAR SESSION

FIFTY FOURTH DAY

House Chamber, Olympia, Friday, March 3, 2017

The House was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by the Speaker (Representative Lovick presiding). The Clerk called the roll and a quorum was present.

March 2, 2017

The flags were escorted to the rostrum by a Sergeant at Arms Color Guard, Pages Myriah Dittmar and Anna Johnson. The Speaker (Representative Lovick presiding) led the Chamber in the Pledge of Allegiance. The prayer was offered by Pastor Aaragon Markwell, First Baptist Church, South Bend, Washington.

Reading of the Journal of the previous day was dispensed with and it was ordered to stand approved.

The Speaker (Representative Lovick presiding) called upon Representative Orwall to preside.

There being no objection, the House advanced to the third order of business.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

March 2, 2017

MR. SPEAKER:

The Senate has passed:

ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 5042,
ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 5234,
ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 5266,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5281,
ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 5629,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5671,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5751,

and the same are herewith transmitted.

Hunter G. Goodman, Secretary

March 2, 2017

MR. SPEAKER:

The Senate has passed:

SENATE BILL NO. 5068,
SENATE BILL NO. 5085,
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5405,
SENATE BILL NO. 5849,

and the same are herewith transmitted.

Hunter G. Goodman, Secretary

MR. SPEAKER:

The Senate has passed:

SENATE BILL NO. 5013,
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5064,
SENATE BILL NO. 5126,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5198,
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5223,
SENATE BILL NO. 5413,
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5438,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5449,
SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5500,
ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE SENATE BILL NO. 5628,
SENATE BILL NO. 5639,
SENATE JOINT MEMORIAL NO. 8009,

and the same are herewith transmitted.

Hunter G. Goodman, Secretary

There being no objection, the House advanced to the fourth order of business.

INTRODUCTION & FIRST READING

SSB 5012 by Senate Committee on Law & Justice
(originally sponsored by Senators Pedersen,
Padden, Frockt, Fain, Mullet and Kuderer)

AN ACT Relating to the distribution of a Washington trust's assets to another trust; and adding a new chapter to Title 11 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Judiciary.

SSB 5022 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means
(originally sponsored by Senators Bailey, Rolfes,
Liias, Keiser, Conway, Wellman, Hasegawa,
Mullet, Frockt and Kuderer)

AN ACT Relating to providing information to students about education loans; adding a new section to chapter 28B.10 RCW; and creating new sections.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

SB 5040 by Senators Pedersen and Padden

AN ACT Relating to making revisions to the uniform business organizations code; and amending RCW

23.95.235, 23.95.255, 23.95.530, 23B.01.570, and 25.05.500.

Referred to Committee on Judiciary.

ESB 5042 by Senators Angel, Hobbs and Wellman

AN ACT Relating to authorizing funeral planning and funeral services as noninsurance benefits under group life and disability insurance policies; and amending RCW 48.24.280 and 48.21.380.

Referred to Committee on Business & Financial Services.

SB 5068 by Senators Miloscia, Rivers, Schoesler, Honeyford and Padden

AN ACT Relating to establishing a voting rights act to promote equal voting opportunity in certain political subdivisions by authorizing district-based elections in cities, towns, code cities, and counties; amending RCW 35.18.020, 35.23.850, 35A.12.180, 36.32.050, and 36.32.0556; and creating a new section.

Referred to Committee on State Government, Elections & Information Technology.

SB 5075 by Senators Takko and Warnick

AN ACT Relating to dispute resolution between seed buyers and dealers; amending RCW 15.49.071 and 15.49.091; and repealing RCW 15.49.081, 15.49.101, and 15.49.111.

Referred to Committee on Agriculture & Natural Resources.

SB 5080 by Senators Padden and Pedersen

AN ACT Relating to actions for damage to real property resulting from construction, alteration, or repair on adjacent property; adding a new section to chapter 4.16 RCW; and creating a new section.

Referred to Committee on Judiciary.

SB 5085 by Senators Pedersen, Padden, Frockt and O'Ban

AN ACT Relating to enactment of the uniform voidable transactions act; amending RCW 19.40.011, 19.40.021, 19.40.031, 19.40.041, 19.40.051, 19.40.061, 19.40.071, 19.40.081, 19.40.091, and 19.40.900; adding new sections to chapter 19.40 RCW; and creating a new section.

Referred to Committee on Judiciary.

SSB 5099 by Senate Committee on Law & Justice (originally sponsored by Senators Bailey, Frockt, O'Ban, Pedersen, Darneille, Keiser and Kuderer)

AN ACT Relating to crimes against vulnerable persons; amending RCW 9A.42.020, 9A.42.030, 9A.42.035, 9A.56.010, 9A.04.080, 9A.56.030, 9A.56.040, and 74.34.020; reenacting and amending RCW 9.94A.411 and 9.94A.515; adding a new section to chapter 9A.56 RCW; and adding a new section to chapter 74.34 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Public Safety.

2SSB 5107 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Senators Billig, Fain, Rolfes, Wellman, Walsh, Zeiger, Liias, Cleveland, Hunt, Conway, Saldaña, Kuderer and Mullet)

AN ACT Relating to creating a local pathway for local governments, school districts, institutions of higher education, and nonprofit organizations to provide more high quality early learning opportunities by reducing barriers and increasing efficiency; amending RCW 43.215.099, 43.215.410, and 43.215.195; adding a new section to chapter 43.215 RCW; and creating a new section.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

SB 5118 by Senators Rolfes, Bailey, Darneille, Billig, Keiser, Kuderer and Chase

AN ACT Relating to increasing the personal needs allowance for persons receiving state-financed care; adding a new section to chapter 74.09 RCW; creating a new section; providing an effective date; and declaring an emergency.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

SB 5119 by Senators Takko, Dassel, Sheldon, Angel, Chase, Palumbo and Wellman

AN ACT Relating to water-sewer districts; amending RCW 57.08.016 and 70.95A.020; adding a new section to chapter 57.20 RCW; and adding a new section to chapter 57.08 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Local Government.

ESB 5128 by Senators Takko, Rivers and Chase

AN ACT Relating to allowing incremental electricity produced as a result of certain capital investment projects to qualify as an eligible renewable resource under the energy independence act; and amending RCW 19.285.030 and 19.285.080.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

SB 5144 by Senators Angel, Mullet and Hobbs

AN ACT Relating to the Washington state credit union act; amending RCW 31.12.055, 31.12.065, 31.12.195, 31.12.246, 31.12.267, 31.12.326, 31.12.335, 31.12.386,

31.12.404, and 31.12.413; reenacting and amending RCW 31.12.005; and reenacting RCW 31.12.436.

Referred to Committee on Business & Financial Services.

SB 5164 by Senators Keiser, Fain, Rivers and Rolfes

AN ACT Relating to authorizing grocery store license endorsements allowing beer and wine tastings at certain grocery stores that specialize in the sale of meat, poultry, seafood, or cheese; and amending RCW 66.24.363.

Referred to Committee on Commerce & Gaming.

ESSB 5173 by Senate Committee on State Government (originally sponsored by Senators Chase, Miloscia, Hunt and Hobbs)

AN ACT Relating to loss prevention reviews by state agencies; and amending RCW 43.19.003, 43.19.782, and 43.19.783.

Referred to Committee on State Government, Elections & Information Technology.

SSB 5185 by Senate Committee on State Government (originally sponsored by Senators Wilson, Mullet and Palumbo)

AN ACT Relating to immunity from liability for professional or trade associations providing emergency response volunteers; and amending RCW 38.52.180.

Referred to Committee on Judiciary.

SB 5200 by Senators Becker, Warnick, Fain, Bailey, Brown, Hasegawa and Rolfes

AN ACT Relating to allowing spouses to combine volunteer hours for purposes of receiving a complimentary discover pass; and amending RCW 79A.80.020.

Referred to Committee on Environment.

ESB 5234 by Senators Mullet, Palumbo, Rivers, Liias, Wilson and Kuderer

AN ACT Relating to a systemwide credit policy regarding AP exams; and adding a new section to chapter 28B.77 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Higher Education.

ESB 5266 by Senators O'Ban, Pedersen, Angel and Darneille

AN ACT Relating to theft of rental property; amending RCW 9A.56.096; and prescribing penalties.

Referred to Committee on Judiciary.

SB 5269 by Senators Warnick, Honeyford, Takko and Chase

AN ACT Relating to WAC 173-563-020(4) and 173-531A-060 regarding the processing of applications for Columbia river water right permits to clarify legislative intent to ensure that the rules can be implemented as written; and amending RCW 90.90.020.

Referred to Committee on Agriculture & Natural Resources.

SB 5274 by Senators Conway, Bailey, Schoesler and Hobbs

AN ACT Relating to defining salary for purposes of the Washington state patrol retirement system; and amending RCW 43.43.120.

Referred to Committee on Transportation.

ESSB 5281 by Senate Committee on Local Government (originally sponsored by Senators Angel, Fortunato, Takko, Fain, Sheldon and Hobbs)

AN ACT Relating to state board of health rules regarding on-site sewage systems; and amending RCW 43.20.050.

Referred to Committee on Environment.

2SSB 5285 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Senators Wilson and Palumbo)

AN ACT Relating to conducting a workforce study of employment opportunities in the agriculture, environment, outdoor recreation, and natural resources economic sectors intended to provide educators with the information needed for informing students about employment opportunities in the studied fields; creating new sections; and providing an expiration date.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

ESSB 5293 by Senate Committee on Human Services, Mental Health & Housing (originally sponsored by Senators Darneille and Chase)

AN ACT Relating to court-based and school-based efforts to promote attendance and reduce truancy; amending RCW 28A.225.020, 28A.225.025, 28A.225.026, and 28A.225.090; and repealing RCW 28A.225.115.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

2SSB 5300 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Senators Zeiger,

Wellman, Fain, Billig, Walsh, Nelson and Hasegawa)

AN ACT Relating to authorizing specified local governments to designate a portion of their territory as a creative district subject to certification by the Washington state arts commission; adding new sections to chapter 43.46 RCW; and creating a new section.

Referred to Committee on Community Development, Housing & Tribal Affairs.

SSB 5366 by Senate Committee on Transportation (originally sponsored by Senators Hobbs, King, Liias and Fortunato)

AN ACT Relating to the authorization of and deposit of moneys from department of transportation advertising activities; adding a new section to chapter 47.04 RCW; providing an effective date; and declaring an emergency.

Referred to Committee on Transportation.

SSB 5372 by Senate Committee on State Government (originally sponsored by Senators Becker, Rivers, Brown, Miloscia, O'Ban, Zeiger and Angel)

AN ACT Relating to state audit findings of noncompliance with state law; amending RCW 43.09.310; and adding a new section to chapter 43.09 RCW.

Referred to Committee on State Government, Elections & Information Technology.

SB 5375 by Senators Fain, Braun, Angel, Brown, Becker, O'Ban, Miloscia, Schoesler, Bailey, Sheldon, Warnick, King, Rivers, Fortunato, Rossi, Baumgartner, Wilson, Honeyford, Padden, Zeiger, Ranker, Darneille, Palumbo, Pedersen, Pearson, Frockt and Hasegawa

AN ACT Relating to renaming the cancer research endowment authority to the Andy Hill cancer research endowment; and amending RCW 43.348.010, 43.348.020, 43.348.030, 43.348.040, 43.348.050, 43.348.060, 43.348.070, and 43.348.080.

Referred to Committee on Health Care & Wellness.

SB 5376 by Senators Sheldon and Padden

AN ACT Relating to indigent defense; amending RCW 10.101.020 and 2.70.020; and reenacting and amending RCW 10.101.010.

Referred to Committee on Judiciary.

SB 5382 by Senators Liias, Hobbs, Walsh, King, Takko, Saldaña, Cleveland, Chase, Kuderer and Wellman

AN ACT Relating to the issuance of identicards at a reduced cost to applicants who are under the age of eighteen and without a permanent residence address; amending RCW 46.20.117 and 46.20.117; providing an effective date; and providing an expiration date.

Referred to Committee on Transportation.

SSB 5394 by Senate Committee on Natural Resources & Parks (originally sponsored by Senators Rivers, Takko, Hasegawa, Braun, Chase, Warnick, Honeyford, Rolfes and Zeiger)

AN ACT Relating to the forestry riparian easement program; and amending RCW 76.13.120.

Referred to Committee on Agriculture & Natural Resources.

SSB 5405 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Senators Wilson, Fortunato and Zeiger)

AN ACT Relating to protection for occupants of national guard facilities; and adding a new section to chapter 38.40 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

SSB 5453 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Senators Honeyford and Frockt)

AN ACT Relating to school construction assistance grants for small, rural school districts; and adding a new section to chapter 28A.525 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Capital Budget.

SB 5454 by Senator Frockt

AN ACT Relating to allowing fire protection district annexations and mergers within a reasonable geographic proximity and eliminating cross-county restrictions for annexations to a fire protection district; and amending RCW 52.04.061, 52.04.071, 52.04.081, 52.04.091, 52.04.101, 52.04.111, 52.04.121, 52.04.131, 52.04.171, and 52.06.010.

Referred to Committee on Local Government.

ESSB 5470 by Senate Committee on Energy, Environment & Telecommunications (originally sponsored by Senators Brown, Hobbs, Rivers, Becker, Takko, Ericksen, Honeyford and Schoesler)

AN ACT Relating to advancing the development of renewable energy by improving the permitting process for geothermal resources exploration; and amending RCW 78.60.010, 78.60.070, and 78.60.120.

Referred to Committee on Environment.

2SSB 5474 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means
(originally sponsored by Senator Pearson)

AN ACT Relating to initiating proactive steps to address elk hoof disease; amending RCW 77.12.047; adding a new section to chapter 77.12 RCW; and creating new sections.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

SSB 5481 by Senate Committee on Health Care
(originally sponsored by Senators Cleveland, Rivers, Becker, Kuderer, Keiser, Carlyle and Saldaña)

AN ACT Relating to breast cancer; and adding a new section to chapter 70.01 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Health Care & Wellness.

SSB 5508 by Senate Committee on Transportation
(originally sponsored by Senators Hawkins, Lias, Fortunato, O'Ban, Saldaña, King, Sheldon and Hobbs)

AN ACT Relating to two-year registration periods for certain vehicles and vessels while maintaining existing annual registration fee amounts; amending RCW 46.16A.010, 46.16A.020, 46.16A.110, 46.16A.180, 46.17.005, 46.17.015, 46.17.025, 46.17.040, 46.17.210, 46.17.305, 46.17.323, 46.17.350, 46.17.355, 46.17.365, 46.17.375, 46.68.030, 82.44.060, 82.50.460, 82.80.140, 88.02.560, and 82.49.010; reenacting and amending RCW 46.17.220, 88.02.310, 88.02.640, and 88.02.640; adding a new section to chapter 46.16A RCW; adding a new section to chapter 88.02 RCW; providing effective dates; and providing an expiration date.

Referred to Committee on Transportation.

SSB 5514 by Senate Committee on Health Care
(originally sponsored by Senators Rivers, Cleveland and Keiser)

AN ACT Relating to rapid health information network data reporting; and adding a new section to chapter 43.70 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Health Care & Wellness.

2SSB 5540 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means
(originally sponsored by Senators Walsh, Darneille, Rivers, Braun and Keiser)

AN ACT Relating to an oral health pilot program for adults with diabetes and pregnant women; adding a new section to chapter 74.09 RCW; creating a new section; and providing an expiration date.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

2SSB 5546 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means
(originally sponsored by Senators Hawkins, McCoy, Fortunato, Pearson, Braun, Sheldon, Rivers and O'Ban)

AN ACT Relating to proactively addressing wildfire risk by creating a forest health treatment assessment; adding a new section to chapter 76.06 RCW; creating a new section; and providing an expiration date.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

SB 5615 by Senators Sheldon, Padden, Fortunato, Hobbs, Warnick and Wilson

AN ACT Relating to the development of new manufactured housing communities outside of urban growth areas under the growth management act; amending RCW 36.70A.350; and creating a new section.

Referred to Committee on Environment.

ESB 5629 by Senators Angel and Hobbs

AN ACT Relating to creating and establishing the rights and duties for title insurance rating and advisory organizations; amending RCW 48.29.010, 48.29.147, and 48.29.017; adding new sections to chapter 48.29 RCW; and prescribing penalties.

Referred to Committee on Business & Financial Services.

SSB 5644 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means
(originally sponsored by Senator Honeyford)

AN ACT Relating to skill center facility maintenance; and adding a new section to chapter 28A.245 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Capital Budget.

ESSB 5671 by Senate Committee on Commerce, Labor & Sports (originally sponsored by Senators Fortunato, Sheldon, Rivers and Wilson)

AN ACT Relating to simplifying the process for bona fide charitable and nonprofit organization to engage in activities and social pastimes, and raise funds for their authorized purposes; amending RCW 9.46.0209, 9.46.0321, 9.46.0323, and 9.46.070; and adding a new section to chapter 9.46 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Commerce & Gaming.

SSB 5705 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means
(originally sponsored by Senators Becker, O'Ban, Rivers, Bailey, Miloscia, Schoesler, Warnick, Brown, Zeiger and Honeyford)

AN ACT Relating to inspection and review of state contracted behavioral health and recovery agencies; amending RCW 43.20A.894; and creating a new section.

Referred to Committee on Health Care & Wellness.

SSB 5725 by Senate Committee on Local Government (originally sponsored by Senators Hasegawa and Chase)

AN ACT Relating to local government responsibility and accountability in mitigating impacts of public facilities on certain surrounding neighborhoods with high poverty and concentrations of persons of color; and adding a new section to chapter 35.21 RCW.

Referred to Committee on Local Government.

ESSB 5751 by Senate Committee on Health Care (originally sponsored by Senator Schoesler)

AN ACT Relating to personnel requirements for municipal ambulance services; and amending RCW 18.73.150.

Referred to Committee on Health Care & Wellness.

SSB 5779 by Senate Committee on Human Services, Mental Health & Housing (originally sponsored by Senators Brown and O'Ban)

AN ACT Relating to behavioral health integration in primary care; amending RCW 74.09.010 and 70.320.020; adding new sections to chapter 74.09 RCW; creating new sections; and repealing RCW 18.205.040.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

SSB 5783 by Senate Committee on Ways & Means (originally sponsored by Senators Sheldon, Fain, Liias, Pearson and Becker)

AN ACT Relating to exempting multipurpose senior citizen centers from property taxation; adding a new section to chapter 84.36 RCW; and creating a new section.

Referred to Committee on Finance.

SB 5849 by Senators Angel, Bailey, Rolfes, Braun, Brown, Sheldon, Pearson, Becker, Fortunato, Wilson, Palumbo, O'Ban, Warnick and Conway

AN ACT Relating to veterans' services; amending RCW 43.60A.100; adding a new section to chapter 43.41 RCW; and creating new sections.

Referred to Committee on Appropriations.

There being no objection, the bills listed on the day's introduction sheet under the fourth order of business were referred to the committees so designated.

There being no objection, the House advanced to the fifth order of business.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

March 1, 2017

HB 1904 Prime Sponsor, Representative Smith: Concerning the sale and taxation of Washingtonians' personal information and related data. Reported by Committee on Technology & Economic Development

MAJORITY recommendation: The substitute bill be substituted therefor and the substitute bill do pass. Signed by Representatives Morris, Chair; Kloba, Vice Chair; Tarleton, Vice Chair; Smith, Ranking Minority Member; DeBolt, Assistant Ranking Minority Member; Doglio; Fey; Harmsworth; Hudgins; Manweller; McDonald; Santos; Slatter and Wylie.

MINORITY recommendation: Do not pass. Signed by Representative Steele.

MINORITY recommendation: Without recommendation. Signed by Representative Nealey.

Passed to Committee on Finance.

There being no objection, the bill listed on the day's committee reports under the fifth order of business was referred to the committee so designated.

There being no objection, the House advanced to the sixth order of business.

SECOND READING

HOUSE BILL NO. 1060, by Representatives Blake, J. Walsh, Appleton and Chapman

Concerning the administration of marijuana to students for medical purposes.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1060 was substituted for House Bill No. 1060 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1060 was read the second time.

Representative Klippert moved the adoption of amendment (199):

On page 1, beginning on line 6, strike all of sections 1 and 2 and insert the following:

"NEW SECTION. Sec. 1. The legislature finds that, as a schedule I controlled substance, health care providers with prescriptive authority may not prescribe and pharmacists may not dispense marijuana and marijuana products. There are, however, other pharmaceutical products that have many of the same properties and benefits as marijuana, such as those made with dronabinol, that may be prescribed and dispensed by licensed health care providers. The legislature finds that these medications should be available to students with a proper prescription in the same manner and according to the same policies governing the administration of other medications at school."

Re-number the remaining sections consecutively and correct any internal references accordingly.

On page 3, after line 38, insert the following:

"(9) The use of marijuana in a form that is classified as a schedule I controlled substance on a school bus, on school grounds, or at a school-sponsored event is prohibited. Nothing in this chapter prohibits cannabinoids that are approved by the United States food and drug administration, prescribed by a licensed health care provider with prescriptive authority, and dispensed by a pharmacist licensed under chapter 18.64 RCW, from being administered to a student on a school bus, on school grounds, or at a school-sponsored event."

On page 4, beginning on line 1, strike all of section 4

Correct the title.

Representative Klippert spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representative Cody spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (199) was not adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representative Blake and Schmick spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representative Klippert spoke against the passage of the bill.

MOTION

On motion of Representative Hayes, Representative Chandler was excused.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1060.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1060, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 78; Nays, 19; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Blake, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Doglio, Dolan, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kirby, Kloba, Koster, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCaslin, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Ryu, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Bergquist, Buys, Calder, Dent, Dye, Griffey, Hayes, Jenkin, Kilduff, Klippert, Kraft, MacEwen, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Pike, Rodne, Santos and Smith.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1060, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

STATEMENT FOR THE JOURNAL

I intended to vote NAY on Substitute House Bill No. 1060.

Representative Lytton, 40 District

SECOND READING

HOUSE BILL NO. 1427, by Representatives Cody, Jinkins, Peterson and Pollet

Concerning opioid treatment programs.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1427 was substituted for House Bill No. 1427 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1427 was read the second time.

With the consent of the House, amendments (170), (189), (64), (190) and (59) were withdrawn.

Representative Stokesbary moved the adoption of amendment (195):

On page 1, after line 3, insert the following:

"Sec. 1. RCW 70.05.010 and 1993 c 492 s 234 are each amended to read as follows:

For the purposes of chapters 70.05 and 70.46 RCW and unless the context thereof clearly indicates to the contrary:

(1) "Local health departments" means the county or district which provides public health services to persons within the area.

(2) "Local health officer" means the legally qualified physician who has been appointed as the health officer for the county or district public health department.

(3) "Local board of health" means the county or district board of health.

(4) "Health district" means all the territory consisting of one or more counties organized pursuant to the provisions of chapters 70.05 and 70.46 RCW.

(5) "Department" means the department of health.

(6) "Safe injection site" means any building, structure, site, facility, or program, including but not limited to safe consumption, safe injection, or needle exchange programs, with a function of providing a space or area for either use or consumption, or both, of federally controlled substances and prohibited by section 5 of this act.

Sec. 2. RCW 70.05.060 and 1991 c 3 s 308 are each amended to read as follows:

Except as provided for in section 5 of this act, each local board of health shall have supervision over all matters pertaining to the preservation of the life and health of the people within its jurisdiction and shall:

(1) Enforce through the local health officer or the administrative officer appointed under RCW 70.05.040, if any, the public health statutes of the state and rules promulgated by the state board of health and the secretary of health;

(2) Supervise the maintenance of all health and sanitary measures for the protection of the public health within its jurisdiction;

(3) Enact such local rules and regulations as are necessary in order to preserve, promote and improve the public health and provide for the enforcement thereof;

(4) Provide for the control and prevention of any dangerous, contagious or infectious disease within the jurisdiction of the local health department;

(5) Provide for the prevention, control and abatement of nuisances detrimental to the public health;

(6) Make such reports to the state board of health through the local health officer or the administrative officer as the state board of health may require; and

(7) Establish fee schedules for issuing or renewing licenses or permits or for such other services as are authorized by the law and the rules of the state board of health: PROVIDED, That such fees for services shall not exceed the actual cost of providing any such services.

Sec. 3. RCW 70.05.070 and 2013 c 200 s 26 are each amended to read as follows:

Except as provided for in section 5 of this act, the local health officer, acting under the direction of the local board of health or under direction of the administrative officer appointed under RCW 70.05.040 or 70.05.035, if any, shall:

(1) Enforce the public health statutes of the state, rules of the state board of health and the secretary of health, and all local health rules, regulations and ordinances within his or her jurisdiction including imposition of penalties authorized under RCW 70.119A.030 and 70.118.130, the confidentiality provisions in RCW 70.02.220 and rules adopted to implement those provisions, and filing of actions authorized by RCW 43.70.190;

(2) Take such action as is necessary to maintain health and sanitation supervision over the territory within his or her jurisdiction;

(3) Control and prevent the spread of any dangerous, contagious or infectious diseases that may occur within his or her jurisdiction;

(4) Inform the public as to the causes, nature, and prevention of disease and disability and the preservation, promotion and improvement of health within his or her jurisdiction;

(5) Prevent, control or abate nuisances which are detrimental to the public health;

(6) Attend all conferences called by the secretary of health or his or her authorized representative;

(7) Collect such fees as are established by the state board of health or the local board of health for the issuance or renewal of licenses or permits or such other fees as may be authorized by law or by the rules of the state board of health;

(8) Inspect, as necessary, expansion or modification of existing public water systems, and the construction of new public water systems, to assure that the expansion, modification, or construction conforms to system design and plans;

(9) Take such measures as he or she deems necessary in order to promote the public health, to participate in the establishment of health educational or training activities, and to authorize the attendance of employees of the local health department or individuals engaged in community health programs related to or part of the programs of the local health department.

NEW SECTION. **Sec. 4.** A new section is added to chapter 70.05 RCW to read as follows:

(1) The state of Washington fully occupies and preempts the entire field of safe injection site regulation within the boundaries of the state, including the registration, licensing, possession, purchase, sale, acquisition, transfer, use, authorization, or any other element relating to safe injection sites. Cities, towns, and counties or other municipalities may only enact laws and ordinances relating to safe injection sites that are specifically authorized by state law and are consistent with this chapter. Such local ordinances have the same penalty as provided for by state law. Local laws and ordinances that are inconsistent with, more restrictive than, or exceed the requirements of state law may not be enacted and are preempted and repealed, regardless of the nature of the code, charter, or home rule status of the enacting city, town, county, or municipality.

(2) Each local health board must provide annual certification to the legislature and state board of health that no private or public safe injection

sites are operating in its local health department jurisdiction.

Sec. 5. RCW 70.05.130 and 1993 c 492 s 242 are each amended to read as follows:

All expenses incurred by the state, health district, or county in carrying out the provisions of chapters 70.05 and 70.46 RCW or any other public health law, or the rules of the department of health enacted under such laws, shall be paid by the county and such expenses shall constitute a claim against the general fund as provided in this section. Any expenditure made related to safe injection sites voids any claim made against the general fund and will result in the denial of all funding claims until the state, health district, or county is able to certify and report to the state board of health and legislature that there are no safe injection sites operating within its jurisdiction."

Renumber the remaining sections consecutively and correct any internal references accordingly. Correct the title.

POINT OF ORDER

Representative Tarleton requested a scope and object ruling on amendment (195) to Substitute House Bill No. 1427.

SPEAKER'S RULING

Mr. Speaker: *"The title of House Bill 1427 is an act 'relating to opioid treatment programs.' The bill modifies the standards for certifying and siting opioid treatment programs. The proposed amendment relates to safe injection sites, which are not treatment programs.*

The Speaker finds and rules that the amendment is beyond the scope of the bill as defined by its title. Your point of order is well taken."

Representative Cody moved the adoption of amendment (219):

Beginning on page 3, line 17, strike all of section 3 and insert the following:

"Sec. 3. RCW 71.24.590 and 2001 c 242 s 2 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) (~~For purposes of this section, "area" means the county in which an applicant proposes to locate a certified program and counties adjacent, or near to, the county in which the program is proposed to be located.~~)

When making a decision on an application for certification of a program, the department shall:

(a) Consult with the county legislative authorities in the area in which an applicant proposes to locate a program and the city legislative authority in any city in which an applicant proposes to locate a program;

(b) Certify only programs that will be sited in accordance with the appropriate county or city land use ordinances. Counties and cities may require conditional ~~((or special))~~ use permits with reasonable conditions for the siting of programs. Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.200, no local comprehensive plan or development regulation may preclude the siting of essential public facilities;

(c) Not discriminate in its certification decision on the basis of the corporate structure of the applicant;

(d) Consider the size of the population in need of treatment in the area in which the program would be located and certify only applicants whose programs meet the necessary treatment needs of that population;

~~((e))~~ ~~((Demonstrate a need in the community for opiate substitution treatment and not certify more program slots than justified by the need in that community. No program shall exceed three hundred fifty participants unless specifically authorized by the county in which the program is certified,~~

~~((f))~~ Consider the availability of other certified opioid treatment programs near the area in which the applicant proposes to locate the program;

~~((g))~~ (f) Consider the transportation systems that would provide service to the program and whether the systems will provide reasonable opportunities to access the program for persons in need of treatment;

~~((h))~~ (g) Consider whether the applicant has, or has demonstrated in the past, the capability to provide the appropriate services to assist the persons who utilize the program in meeting goals established by the legislature, including ~~((abstinence from opiates and opiate substitutes,))~~ obtaining ~~((mental))~~ behavioral health treatment services, improving economic independence, and reducing adverse consequences associated with illegal use

of controlled substances. The department shall prioritize certification to applicants who have demonstrated such capability;

~~((i))~~ (h) Hold ~~((at least))~~ one public hearing in the ~~((county))~~ community in which the facility is proposed to be located ~~((and one hearing in the area in which the facility is proposed to be located))~~. The hearing shall be held at a time and location that are most likely to permit the largest number of interested persons to attend and present testimony. The department shall notify all appropriate media outlets of the time, date, and location of the hearing at least three weeks in advance of the hearing.

(2) A county may impose a maximum capacity for a program of not less than three hundred fifty participants if necessary to address specific local conditions cited by the county.

(3) A program applying for certification from the department and a program applying for a contract from a state agency that has been denied the certification or contract shall be provided with a written notice specifying the rationale and reasons for the denial.

~~((3))~~ (4) For the purpose of this chapter, ~~((opiate substitution))~~ opioid treatment program means:

(a) Dispensing ~~((an opiate substitution drug))~~ a medication approved by the federal drug administration for the treatment of ~~((opiate addiction))~~ opioid use disorder; and

(b) Providing a comprehensive range of medical and rehabilitative services."

On page 5, after line 5, insert the following:

"**Sec. 4.** RCW 71.24.590 and 2001 c 242 s 2 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) ~~((For purposes of this section, "area" means the county in which an applicant proposes to locate a certified program and counties adjacent, or near to, the county in which the program is proposed to be located.))~~

When making a decision on an application for licensing or certification of a program, the department shall:

(a) Consult with the county legislative authorities in the area in

which an applicant proposes to locate a program and the city legislative authority in any city in which an applicant proposes to locate a program;

(b) License or certify only programs that will be sited in accordance with the appropriate county or city land use ordinances. Counties and cities may require conditional ~~((or special))~~ use permits with reasonable conditions for the siting of programs. Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.200, no local comprehensive plan or development regulation may preclude the siting of essential public facilities;

(c) Not discriminate in its licensing or certification decision on the basis of the corporate structure of the applicant;

(d) Consider the size of the population in need of treatment in the area in which the program would be located and license or certify only applicants whose programs meet the necessary treatment needs of that population;

~~((e))~~ ~~((Demonstrate a need in the community for opiate substitution treatment and not certify more program slots than justified by the need in that community. No program shall exceed three hundred fifty participants unless specifically authorized by the county in which the program is certified;~~

~~((f))~~ Consider the availability of other licensed or certified opioid treatment programs near the area in which the applicant proposes to locate the program;

~~((g))~~ (f) Consider the transportation systems that would provide service to the program and whether the systems will provide reasonable opportunities to access the program for persons in need of treatment;

~~((h))~~ (g) Consider whether the applicant has, or has demonstrated in the past, the capability to provide the appropriate services to assist the persons who utilize the program in meeting goals established by the legislature, including ~~((abstinence from opiates and opiate substitutes,))~~ obtaining ~~((mental))~~ behavioral health treatment services, improving economic independence, and reducing adverse consequences associated with illegal use of controlled substances. The department shall prioritize licensing or

certification to applicants who have demonstrated such capability;

~~((i))~~ (h) Hold ~~((at least))~~ one public hearing in the ~~((county))~~ community in which the facility is proposed to be located ~~((and one hearing in the area in which the facility is proposed to be located))~~. The hearing shall be held at a time and location that are most likely to permit the largest number of interested persons to attend and present testimony. The department shall notify all appropriate media outlets of the time, date, and location of the hearing at least three weeks in advance of the hearing.

(2) A county may impose a maximum capacity for a program of not less than three hundred fifty participants if necessary to address specific local conditions cited by the county.

(3) A program applying for licensing or certification from the department and a program applying for a contract from a state agency that has been denied the licensing or certification or contract shall be provided with a written notice specifying the rationale and reasons for the denial.

~~((3))~~ (4) For the purpose of this chapter, ~~((opiate substitution))~~ opioid treatment program means:

(a) Dispensing ~~((an opiate substitution drug))~~ a medication approved by the federal drug administration for the treatment of ~~((opiate addiction))~~ opioid use disorder; and

(b) Providing a comprehensive range of medical and rehabilitative services."

ReNUMBER the remaining section consecutively and correct any internal references accordingly.

On page 6, after line 2, insert the following:

"Sec. 5. RCW 71.24.595 and 2003 c 207 s 6 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The department, in consultation with ~~((opiate substitution))~~ opioid treatment program service providers and counties and cities, shall establish statewide treatment standards for licensed or certified ~~((opiate substitution))~~ opioid treatment programs. The department shall enforce these treatment standards. The treatment standards shall include, but not be

limited to, reasonable provisions for all appropriate and necessary medical procedures, counseling requirements, urinalysis, and other suitable tests as needed to ensure compliance with this chapter.

(2) The department, in consultation with ~~((opiate substitution))~~ opioid treatment programs and counties, shall establish statewide operating standards for certified ~~((opiate substitution))~~ opioid treatment programs. The department shall enforce these operating standards. The operating standards shall include, but not be limited to, reasonable provisions necessary to enable the department and counties to monitor certified ~~((and))~~ or licensed ~~((opiate substitution))~~ opioid treatment programs for compliance with this chapter and the treatment standards authorized by this chapter and to minimize the impact of the ~~((opiate substitution))~~ opioid treatment programs upon the business and residential neighborhoods in which the program is located.

~~(3) ((The department shall establish criteria for evaluating the compliance of opiate substitution treatment programs with the goals and standards established under this chapter. As a condition of certification, opiate substitution programs shall submit an annual report to the department and county legislative authority, including data as specified by the department necessary for outcome analysis. The department shall analyze and evaluate the data submitted by each treatment program and take corrective action where necessary to ensure compliance with the goals and standards enumerated under this chapter))~~ Opioid treatment programs are subject to the oversight required for other substance use disorder treatment programs, as described in this chapter.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 6. Sections 3 and 5 of this act take effect only if neither Substitute House Bill No. 1388 (including any later amendments or substitutes) nor Substitute Senate Bill No. 5259 (including any later amendments or substitutes) is signed into law by the governor by the effective date of this section.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 7. Sections 4 and 6 of this act take effect only if Substitute House Bill No. 1388 (including any later amendments or substitutes) or Substitute Senate Bill No. 5259 (including any later amendments or

substitutes) is signed into law by the governor by the effective date of this section."

Correct the title.

Representatives Cody and Schmick spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (219) was adopted.

The bill was ordered engrossed.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Cody and Schmick spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Irwin and Stokesbary spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 1427.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 1427, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 82; Nays, 15; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Condotta, Haler, Irwin, Klippert, Kretz, Maycumber, McCaslin, Orcutt, Rodne, Shea, Smith, Stokesbary, Taylor, Volz and Young.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1427, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1772, by Representatives Appleton, Johnson, Tharinger, Jinkins, Harris, Goodman and Santos

Increasing the personal needs allowance for persons receiving state-financed care.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representative Appleton spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1772.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1772, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Taylor.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1772, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1402, by Representatives Jinkins, Griffey, Rodne, Goodman, Muri, Kilduff, Orwall, Haler, Kirby, Hansen, Frame, Johnson, Appleton, Ortiz-Self and Cody

Concerning the rights and obligations associated with incapacitated persons and other vulnerable adults.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Second Substitute House Bill No. 1402 was substituted for House Bill No. 1402 and the second substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1402 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Jinkins, Griffey and Klippert spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Second Substitute House Bill No. 1402.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Second Substitute House Bill No. 1402, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1402, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1413, by Representatives Cody, Schmick, Macri, Harris, Jinkins, Appleton and Springer

Specifying to whom information and records related to mental health services may be disclosed for the purposes of care coordination and treatment.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1413 was substituted for House Bill No. 1413 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1413 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Cody and Schmick spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1413.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1413, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 94; Nays, 3; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Springer, Stambaugh, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Smith, Taylor and J. Walsh.
Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1413, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1477, by Representatives Kilduff, Muri, Lytton, Stambaugh, Orwall, McDonald, Robinson, Lovick, Goodman, Sells, Appleton and Fey

Concerning disclosure of health-related information with persons with a close relationship with a patient.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1477 was substituted for House Bill No. 1477 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1477 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Kilduff and Schmick spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representative Maycumber spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1477.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1477, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 69; Nays, 28; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, DeBolt, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Hansen, Hargrove, Hudgins, Irwin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Kloba, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Wilcox, Wylie and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Buys, Condotta, Dent, Griffey, Haler, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Jenkin, Klippert, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Manweller, Maycumber, McCaslin, Nealey, Orcutt, Shea, Smith, Taylor, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh and Young.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1477, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1520, by Representatives Tharinger, Short, Cody, Schmick and Springer

Allowing alternative payment methodologies for critical access hospitals participating in the Washington rural health access preservation pilot.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1520 was substituted for House Bill No. 1520 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1520 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Tharinger, Schmick and Klippert spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1520.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1520, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 95; Nays, 2; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody,

DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Condotta and Steele.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1520, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1439, by Representatives Pollet, Haler, Tarleton, Fey, Sells, Orwall, Ryu, Stanford and Dolan

Regulating the institutions of higher education, including for-profit institutions and private vocational schools, to protect students from unfair business practices.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Second Substitute House Bill No. 1439 was substituted for House Bill No. 1439 and the second substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1439 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Pollet, Holy and Tarleton spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Stambaugh and DeBolt spoke against the passage of the bill.

There being no objection, the House deferred action on SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1439, and the bill held its place on the third reading calendar.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1499, by Representatives Pollet, Ryu, Sells, Lovick, Bergquist and Stanford

Creating protections and fairness for students in the student loan disbursement process.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Pollet and Holy spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1499.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1499, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Klippert.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1499, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 2009, by Representatives Reeves, Stonier, Riccelli, Peterson, Doglio, Jinkins, Kilduff, Lovick, Tarleton, McBride, Ormsby, Stanford, Orwall, Muri, Slatter, Ryu and Fey

Providing higher education support for gold star families.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Second Substitute House Bill No. 2009 was substituted for House Bill No. 2009 and the second substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 2009 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Farrell, Pollet, Holy and Reeves spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Second Substitute House Bill No. 2009.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Second Substitute House Bill No. 2009, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 2009, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1530, by Representatives Gregerson, Morris and Appleton

Grandfathering the accrual of vacation leave above the statutory maximum for certain employees of the Washington state ferries.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representative Gregerson spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representative Manweller spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1530.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1530, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 88; Nays, 9; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Bergquist, Blake, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, DeBolt, Doglio, Dolan, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Barkis, Buys, Condotta, Dent, Dye, Manweller, Schmick, Taylor and Wilcox.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1530, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1624, by Representatives Senn, Dent, Kagi, Lytton, Farrell, Pettigrew, Hudgins, Goodman, Frame and Slatter

Concerning working connections child care eligibility for vulnerable children.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1624 was substituted for House Bill No. 1624 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1624 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Senn and Dent spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1624.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1624, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 76; Nays, 21; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Hansen, Hayes, Hudgins, Irwin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe,

McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Volz, Wilcox, Wylie and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Buys, Condotta, Dye, Griffey, Haler, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Holy, Jenkin, Kraft, Manweller, Nealey, Pike, Schmick, Shea, Taylor, Van Werven, Vick, J. Walsh and Young.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1624, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1630, by Representatives Slatter, McDonald, Senn, Dent, Kilduff, McBride, Frame, Jinkins, Kloba, Santos, Appleton, Muri, Fey, Doglio, Stanford and Kagi

Allowing minors to consent to share their personally identifying information in the Washington homeless client management information system.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Slatter, Dent, DeBolt, Kretz and J. Walsh spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1630.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1630, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Taylor.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1630, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1755, by Representative Manweller

Requiring notice to state fund employers for certain workers' compensation third-party settlements.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1755 was substituted for House Bill No. 1755 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1755 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Manweller and Sells spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1755.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1755, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1755, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1867, by Representatives Fey, Stambaugh, Senn, Kagi, Kilduff, Appleton, Graves, Hudgins, Orwall, Ryu, Sells, Stanford, Robinson,

McDonald, Ortiz-Self, Doglio, Slatter, Tharinger and Ormsby**Improving transitions in extended foster care to increase housing stability for foster youth.**

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1867 was substituted for House Bill No. 1867 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1867 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Fey and McDonald spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1867.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1867, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 95; Nays, 2; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Manweller and Taylor.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1867, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1820, by Representatives Volz, Tharinger, Senn, McCaslin, Koster, Haler, Shea, Irwin and Holy

Concerning the maintenance and operations of parks and recreational land acquired through the conservation futures program.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1820 was substituted for House Bill No. 1820 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1820 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Volz, Lytton, Manweller, Caldier and Shea spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1820.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1820, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1820, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

Representative Holy congratulated Representative Volz on the passage of his first bill through the House, and asked the Chamber to acknowledge his accomplishment.

HOUSE BILL NO. 2121, by Representatives Pettigrew, Tarleton and Macri

Repealing income eligibility for temporary assistance for needy families benefits for a child who lives with a nonparent caregiver.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 2121 was substituted for House Bill No. 2121 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 2121 was read the second time.

Representative Caldier moved the adoption of amendment (224):

On page 1, beginning on line 6, strike all of section 1 and insert the following:

"**Sec. 1.** RCW 74.12.037 and 2014 c 75 s 1 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The department shall adopt rules establishing income eligibility for temporary assistance for needy families benefits for a child, other than a foster child, who lives with a caregiver other than his or her parents. The department shall establish a sliding scale benefit standard for a child when the income of the child's caregiver is above two hundred percent but below (~~three~~) four hundred percent of the federal poverty level based on family size. A caregiver with an income above (~~three~~) four hundred percent of the federal poverty level shall not be eligible for temporary assistance for needy families benefits for a child, not a foster child, who is residing with that caregiver.

(2)(a) For purposes of this section, the department may, by rule, exempt fifty percent of a caregiver's unearned income in determining eligibility and benefit standards. This is in addition to other exemptions authorized by law.

(b) For purposes of this subsection, "unearned income" means income received from a source other than employment or self-employment."

Re-number the remaining sections consecutively and correct internal references accordingly.

Correct the title.

Representatives Caldier and Tarleton spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (224) was adopted.

The bill was ordered engrossed.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Riccelli, Kagi, Caldier and Pettigrew spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 2121.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 2121, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 84; Nays, 13; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, DeBolt, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Condotta, Dent, Hargrove, Holy, Klippert, Manweller, McCaslin, Orcutt, Schmick, Shea, Taylor, Vick and Volz.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 2121, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1237, by Representatives Sells, Haler, Pollet, Appleton, Bergquist, Cody, Farrell, Riccelli, Lovick, Johnson, Ormsby, Springer, Gregerson, Ryu, Wylie, Sawyer, Santos, Senn, Goodman, Fey and Stanford

Modifying collective bargaining law to authorize providing additional compensation to academic employees at community and technical colleges.

The bill was read the second time.

Representative Manweller moved the adoption of amendment (222):

On page 1, at the beginning of line 8, insert "(1)"

On page 1, at the beginning of line 17, insert the following:

"(2) The written agreement acted upon by a board of trustees must be submitted to the director of the office of financial management by October 1 prior to the fiscal year in which the provisions of the agreement go into effect."

Representatives Manweller and Sells spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (222) was adopted.

The bill was ordered engrossed.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Sells and Manweller spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed House Bill No. 1237.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed House Bill No. 1237, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 65; Nays, 32; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Doglio, Dolan, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hayes, Hudgins, Irwin, Jinkins, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Kloba, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, McBride, Morris, Muri, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Buys, Caldier, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Dye, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Holy, Jenkin, Johnson, Klippert, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Maycumber, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Nealey, Orcutt, Pike, Schmick, Shea, Smith, Taylor, Van Werven, Vick, Volz and J. Walsh.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1237, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1722, by Representatives Kirby and Vick)

Eliminating wholesale vehicle dealer licensing.

The bill was read the second time.

With the consent of the House, amendment (032) was withdrawn.

Representative J. Walsh moved the adoption of amendment (226):

On page 9, after line 39, insert the following:

"NEW SECTION. Sec. 7. A new section is added to chapter 46.70 RCW to read as follows:

(1) (a) The department shall issue a license to a person, firm, association, corporation, or trust to act as a retail vehicle dealer, as defined in RCW 46.70.011, if the person, firm, association, corporation, or trust meets the requirements of this section.

(b) This section is an alternative to the license application process and requirements that otherwise apply to applicants for a motor vehicle dealer license under this chapter, and is available only for applicants that meet the requirements of this section.

(2) To be eligible for a license as a retail vehicle dealer under this section, a person, firm, association, corporation, or trust must:

(a) Have been licensed as a wholesale vehicle dealer by the department for at least five years preceding the effective date of this section;

(b) Have maintained a physical presence in this state for the entire five-year period in (a) of this subsection; and

(c) Have purchased and sold a majority of the vehicles that the person, firm, association, corporation, or trust has purchased and sold within the five-year period in (a) of this subsection from and to other Washington licensed vehicle dealers.

(3) To be eligible for a license under this section, a person, firm, association, corporation, or trust must:

(a) Submit an application to the department in accordance with RCW 46.70.031; and

(b) Meet the qualifications for a motor vehicle dealer license under this chapter, except that the applicant is not required to be open during normal business hours as otherwise required under RCW 46.70.023(9).

(4) (a) A license issued under this section is subject to all requirements of this chapter that apply to motor vehicle dealers, except as otherwise provided in this section.

(b) The fee for a retail vehicle dealer license issued under this section is the amount of the license renewal fee in RCW 46.70.061(2).

(c) A license issued pursuant to this section may not become effective before July 1, 2019.

(5) As used in this section, "wholesale vehicle dealer" means a vehicle dealer who buys vehicles from or sells vehicles to other Washington licensed vehicle dealers."

Renumber the remaining sections consecutively and correct any internal references accordingly.

On page 10, after line 6, insert the following:

"NEW SECTION. **Sec. 9.** Section 7 of this act takes effect March 1, 2019."

Correct the title.

Representative J. Walsh spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representative Kirby spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (226) was not adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representative Kirby spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representative Vick spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1722.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1722, and the bill passed the House by the following vote:Yeas, 71; Nays, 26; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, DeBolt, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hudgins, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Kloba, Kraft, Lovick, Lytton, Macri, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Buys, Condotta, Dent, Graves, Hayes, Holy, Irwin, Klippert, Koster, Kretz, Kristiansen, MacEwen, Manweller, Maycumber, McCaslin,

Nealey, Pike, Shea, Steele, Stokesbary, Taylor, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh and Wilcox.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1722, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1426, by Representatives Robinson, Harris, Cody, Caldier, Rodne, Slatter, Jinkins, Peterson, Kilduff and Kagi

Concerning persons and entities to whom the department of health may provide prescription monitoring program data.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection Second Substitute House Bill No. 1426 was substituted for House Bill No. 1426 and the second substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1426 was read the second time.

With the consent of the House, amendment (153) was withdrawn.

Representative Taylor moved the adoption of amendment (212):

On page 2, beginning on line 8, after "(d)" strike all material through "(e)" on line 12 and insert "((Appropriate law enforcement or prosecutorial officials, including local, state, and federal officials and officials of federally recognized tribes, who are engaged in a bona fide specific investigation involving a designated person;

(e)))"

Renumber the remaining subsections consecutively and correct any internal references accordingly.

Representative Taylor and Taylor (again) spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representative Robinson spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (212) was not adopted.

Representative Robinson moved the adoption of amendment (207):

On page 2, line 16, after "clients" insert "for the purposes of quality improvement, patient safety, and care coordination. The information may not be used for contracting or value-based purchasing decisions"

On page 3, line 34, after "medical association," insert "a statewide

association representing advanced registered nurse practitioners,"

On page 3, line 37, after "(a)" strike "The" and insert "Subject to funds appropriated for this specific purpose, the"

On page 4, line 18, after "(c)" strike "The" and insert "Subject to funds appropriated for this specific purpose, the"

On page 5, beginning on line 10, strike all of sections 2 and 3 and insert the following:

"NEW SECTION. **Sec. 2.** A new section is added to chapter 70.225 RCW to read as follows:

Beginning November 15, 2017, the department shall annually report to the governor and the appropriate committees of the legislature on the number of facilities, entities, or provider groups identified in RCW 70.225.040(3)(l) and (m) that have integrated their federally certified electronic health records with the prescription monitoring program utilizing the state health information exchange."

Correct the title.

Representatives Robinson and Schmick spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (207) was adopted.

The bill was ordered engrossed.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Robinson, Hayes and Harris spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representative Schmick spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill No. 1426.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill No. 1426, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 85; Nays, 12; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jenkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff,

Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Buys, Dent, Holy, Kretz, Maycumber, McCaslin, Pike, Schmick, Shea, Taylor, Volz and Young.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

ENGROSSED SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1426, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1501, by Representatives Hansen, Hayes, Kagi, Smith, Tharinger, Clibborn and Muri

Protecting law enforcement and the public from persons who illegally attempt to obtain firearms.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1501 was substituted for House Bill No. 1501 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1501 was read the second time.

With the consent of the House, amendment (203) was withdrawn.

Representative Taylor moved the adoption of amendment (202):

On page 2, line 20, after "including" insert "enrolled members of"

Representative Taylor spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Representative Hansen spoke against the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (202) was not adopted.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Hansen and Hayes spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representative Taylor spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1501.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1501, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 84; Nays, 13; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, DeBolt, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Condotta, Dent, Holy, Jenkin, Kretz, Manweller, Maycumber, McCaslin, Pike, Shea, Taylor, Volz and Young.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1501, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1603, by Representatives Kilduff, Sawyer, Goodman, McBride and Frame

Updating the child support economic table based on recommendations of the child support work group.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Kilduff, Rodne and Shea spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1603.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1603, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jenkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Kloba, Kraft,

Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jenkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Taylor.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1603, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed

HOUSE BILL NO. 1655, by Representatives Lovick, Holy, Griffey, Hayes, Sells, Doglio, Stokesbary, Frame, Irwin, Fitzgibbon, Pike, Fey, Goodman, Pollet and Stanford

Providing industrial insurance coverage for stress-caused mental disorders and disabilities of members of the law enforcement officers' and firefighters' retirement system.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1655 was substituted for House Bill No. 1655 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1655 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Lovick, Griffey and Irwin spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Manweller and Koster spoke against the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1655.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1655, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 84; Nays, 13; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jenkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Kloba, Kraft,

Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Sells, Senn, Shea, Smith, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Buys, Condotta, Hargrove, Klippert, Koster, Kretz, Kristiansen, Manweller, Nealey, Schmick, Slatter, Springer and Taylor.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1655, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1782, by Representatives Stonier, Harris, Cody, Schmick and Caldier

Concerning dental laboratories.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1782 was substituted for House Bill No. 1782 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1782 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Stonier and Caldier spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1782.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1782, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 96; Nays, 1; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger,

Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representative Taylor.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1782, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1789, by Representatives Jinkins, Pettigrew, Frame, Stambaugh, Ortiz-Self, Fitzgibbon, Macri, Ormsby and Gregerson

Concerning rehabilitated offenders.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Second Substitute House Bill No. 1789 was substituted for House Bill No. 1789 and the second substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1789 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Jinkins and Klippert spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Second Substitute House Bill No. 1789.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Second Substitute House Bill No. 1789, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 77; Nays, 20; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Bergquist, Blake, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Barkis, Buys, Condotta, DeBolt, Dye, Griffey, Harmsworth, Harris, Kraft, Kretz, Maycumber, McCaslin, Orcutt, Pike, Schmick, Shea, Taylor, Van Werven, Vick and Young.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1789, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1906, by Representatives Orcutt, Blake, McDonald, Pike and Doglio

Allowing the expansion of counties qualifying for the farm internship program, including certain southwest Washington counties. (REVISED FOR PASSED LEGISLATURE: Allowing the expansion of counties qualifying for the farm internship program.)

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Orcutt and Sells spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1906.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1906, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Calder, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1906, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1952, by Representatives Blake, J. Walsh, Pellicciotti, Chapman, Stambaugh and Ormsby

Concerning enforcement of the electrical laws.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1952 was substituted for House Bill No. 1952 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1952 was read the second time.

Representative J. Walsh moved the adoption of amendment (227):

On page 3, after line 28, insert the following:

"Sec. 3. RCW 19.28.311 and 2011 c 336 s 529 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created an electrical board, consisting of fifteen members to be appointed by the governor with the advice of the director of labor and industries as herein provided. It shall be the purpose and function of the board to advise the director on all matters pertaining to the enforcement of this chapter including, but not limited to, standards of electrical and telecommunications installation, minimum inspection procedures, and the adoption of rules pertaining to the electrical inspection division: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That no rules shall be amended or repealed until the electrical board has first had an opportunity to consider any proposed amendments or repeals and had an opportunity to make recommendations to the director relative thereto. The members of the electrical board shall be selected and appointed as follows: One member shall be an employee or officer of a corporation or public agency generating or distributing electric power; one member must be an employee or officer of a facilities-based telecommunications service provider regulated by the Washington state utilities and transportation commission; three members shall be licensed electrical contractors: PROVIDED, That one of these members may be a representative of a trade association in the electrical industry; one member shall be a licensed telecommunications contractor; one member shall be an employee, or officer, or representative of a corporation or firm engaged in the business of manufacturing or distributing electrical and telecommunications materials, equipment, or devices; one member shall be a person with knowledge of the electrical industry, not related to the electrical industry, to represent the public; three members shall be certified electricians; one member shall be a telecommunications worker; one member

shall be a licensed professional electrical engineer qualified to do business in the state of Washington and designated as a registered communications distribution designer; one member shall be an outside line worker; and one (~~nonvoting~~) member must be a building official from an incorporated city or town with an electrical inspection program established under RCW 19.28.141. The regular term of each member shall be four years: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, The original board shall be appointed on June 9, 1988, for the following terms: The first term of the member representing a corporation or public agency generating or distributing electric power shall serve four years; two members representing licensed electrical contractors shall serve three years; the member representing a manufacturer or distributor of electrical equipment or devices shall serve three years; the member representing the public and one member representing licensed electrical contractors shall serve two years; the three members selected as certified electricians shall serve for terms of one, two, and three years, respectively; the member selected as the licensed professional electrical engineer shall serve for one year. In appointing the original board, the governor shall give due consideration to the value of continuity in membership from predecessor boards. Thereafter, the governor shall appoint or reappoint board members for terms of four years and to fill vacancies created by the completion of the terms of the original members. When new positions are created, the governor may appoint the initial members to the new positions to staggered terms of one to three years. The governor shall also fill vacancies caused by death, resignation, or otherwise for the unexpired term of such members by appointing their successors from the same business classification. The same procedure shall be followed in making such subsequent appointments as is provided for the original appointments. The board, at this first meeting shall elect one of its members to serve as chair. Any person acting as the chief electrical inspector shall serve as secretary of the board during his or her tenure as chief state inspector. Meetings of the board shall be held at least quarterly in accordance with a schedule established by the board. Each member of the board shall receive compensation in

accordance with RCW 43.03.240 and shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 which shall be paid out of the electrical license fund, upon vouchers approved by the director of labor and industries."

Correct the title.

Representatives J. Walsh and Sells spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (227) was adopted.

The bill was ordered engrossed.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Blake, J. Walsh and Stambaugh spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 1952.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 1952, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1952, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1490, by Representatives Fey, Rodne, Clibborn, Hargrove, Riccelli, Van Werven, McBride and Irwin

Eliminating the requirement that a city or town provide preservation rating information on a certain

percentage of its arterial network. Revised for 1st Substitute: Concerning the reporting of preservation rating information on arterial networks by cities and towns.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1490 was substituted for House Bill No. 1490 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1490 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Fey and Orcutt spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1490.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1490, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1490, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1857, by Representatives Kloba, Sawyer, Appleton and Condotta

Addressing provisions concerning marijuana with respect to research licenses, local authority notifications, the retail licensing application process, processor wholesale events, and jurisdictional requirements.

The bill was read the second time.

Representative Condotta moved the adoption of amendment (053):

Beginning on page 1, line 7, strike all of section 1

Renumber the remaining sections consecutively and correct the title.

Representatives Condotta and Sawyer spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (053) was adopted.

Representative Stokesbary moved the adoption of amendment (131):

On page 6, beginning on line 37, after "country" strike all material through "tribe" on line 38

On page 7, line 31, after "in" strike "(b)" and insert "~~((b))~~ (a)(i)"

On page 7, line 31, after "through" strike "(d)" and insert "~~((d))~~ (ii)"

On page 7, at the beginning of line 38, strike "(b)" and insert "~~((b))~~ (i)"

On page 7, line 40, after "in" strike "(a) of" and insert "~~((a) of)~~"

On page 8, at the beginning of line 6, strike "(c)" and insert "~~((c))~~ (ii)"

On page On page 8, line 8, after "in" strike "(a) of" and insert "~~((a) of)~~"

On page 8, at the beginning of line 13, strike "(d)" and insert "~~((d))~~ (iii)"

On page 8, line 15, after "under" strike "(b) or (c)" and insert "~~((b) or (c))~~ (a)(i) or (ii)"

On page 8, line 19, after "to" strike "(c)" and insert "~~((c))~~ (a)(ii)"

On page 8, at the beginning of line 20, strike "(i)" and insert "~~((i))~~ (A)"

On page 8, at the beginning of line 22, strike "(ii)" and insert "~~((ii))~~ (B)"

On page 8, at the beginning of line 24, strike "(iii)" and insert "~~((iii))~~ (C)"

On page 8, line 25, after "facility." insert the following:

"(b) The state liquor and cannabis board may not issue a license for any premises within Indian country, as

defined in RCW 82.24.010, including any federal fee patent lands within the exterior boundaries of a reservation, unless incorporated into an agreement with a federally recognized tribe, pursuant to RCW 43.06.490."

Representatives Stokesbary and Sawyer spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (131) was adopted.

The bill was ordered engrossed.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Kloba and Condotta spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed House Bill No. 1857.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed House Bill No. 1857, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 85; Nays, 12; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, Doglio, Dolan, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, McBride, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Buys, DeBolt, Dent, Dye, Haler, Klippert, Kretz, Maycumber, McCabe, Pike, Shea and Taylor.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1857, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1248, by Representatives Griffey, Appleton, Goodman, Klippert, Holy and Hayes

Correcting a conflict between state and federal law regarding class I correctional industries work programs.

The bill was read the second time.

Representative Klippert moved the adoption of amendment (034):

On page 4, after line 27, insert the following:

"(10) For purposes of this section, "wages" means monetary compensation due to an offender worker by reason of his or her participation in a class I work program, subject to allowable deductions."

Representatives Klippert and Goodman spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (034) was adopted.

The bill was ordered engrossed.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Griffey and Goodman spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed House Bill No. 1248.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed House Bill No. 1248, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 94; Nays, 3; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Barkis, Koster and McCabe.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1248, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1673, by Representatives Doglio, Sells, Gregerson, Ormsby, Macri, Goodman, Frame, Stonier, McBride, Cody, Senn, Ortiz-Self and Pollet

Adding training on public works and prevailing wage requirements to responsible bidder criteria.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1673 was substituted for House Bill No. 1673 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1673 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Doglio and Manweller spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1673.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1673, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 59; Nays, 38; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Bergquist, Blake, Calder, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Doglio, Dolan, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Gregerson, Haler, Hansen, Hudgins, Jinkins, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Kloba, Lovick, Lytton, Macri, Manweller, McBride, McDonald, Morris, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Barkis, Buys, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Dye, Graves, Griffey, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Irwin, Jenkin, Johnson, Klippert, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCabe, McCaslin, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Rodne, Schmick, Shea, Smith, Steele, Taylor, Van Werven, Vick, Volz and Young.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1673, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) called upon Representative Lovick to preside.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1594, by Representatives McBride, Nealey, Springer, Clibborn, Hayes, Gregerson, Peterson, Koster, Griffey, Klippert, Kilduff, Muri, Senn, Goodman, Haler, Robinson, Sells, Steele, Fitzgibbon,

Fey, Kraft, Bergquist, Smith, Tharinger, Stanford, Kloba, Jinkins, Hargrove, Slatter and Kagi

Improving public records administration.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1594 was substituted for House Bill No. 1594 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1594 was read the second time.

Representative Koster moved the adoption of amendment (220):

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

"Sec. 1. RCW 42.56.152 and 2014 c 66 s 4 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Public records officers designated under RCW 42.56.580 and records officers designated under RCW 40.14.040 must complete a training course regarding the provisions of this chapter, and also chapter 40.14 RCW for records retention.

(2) Public records officers must:

(a) Complete training no later than ninety days after assuming responsibilities as a public records officer or records manager; and

(b) Complete refresher training at intervals of no more than four years as long as they maintain the designation.

(3) Training must be consistent with the attorney general's model rules for compliance with the public records act.

(4) Training may be completed remotely with technology including but not limited to internet-based training.

(5) Training must address particular issues related to the retention, production, and disclosure of electronic documents, including updating and improving technology information services.

Sec. 2. RCW 42.56.520 and 2010 c 69 s 2 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Responses to requests for public records shall be made promptly by agencies, the office of the secretary of the senate, and the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives. Within five business days of receiving a public record request, an agency, the office of the secretary of the senate, or

the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives must respond ~~((by either))~~ in one of the ways provided in this subsection (1):

(a) Providing the record;

~~((2))~~ (b) Providing an internet address and link on the agency's web site to the specific records requested, except that if the requester notifies the agency that he or she cannot access the records through the internet, then the agency must provide copies of the record or allow the requester to view copies using an agency computer;

~~((3))~~ (c) Acknowledging that the agency, the office of the secretary of the senate, or the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives has received the request and providing a reasonable estimate of the time the agency, the office of the secretary of the senate, or the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives will require to respond to the request;

(d) Acknowledging that the agency, the office of the secretary of the senate, or the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives has received the request and asking the requestor to provide clarification for a request that is unclear, and providing, to the greatest extent possible, a reasonable estimate of the time the agency, the office of the secretary of the senate, or the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives will require to respond to the request if it is not clarified; or

~~((4))~~ (e) Denying the public record request.

(2) Additional time required to respond to a request may be based upon the need to clarify the intent of the request, to locate and assemble the information requested, to notify third persons or agencies affected by the request, or to determine whether any of the information requested is exempt and that a denial should be made as to all or part of the request.

(3) (a) In acknowledging receipt of a public record request that is unclear, an agency, the office of the secretary of the senate, or the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives may ask the requestor to clarify what information the requestor is seeking.

(b) If the requestor fails to respond to an agency request to clarify the request, and the entire request is unclear, the agency, the office of the secretary of the senate, or the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives need not respond to it. Otherwise, the agency must respond, pursuant to this section, to those portions of the request that are clear.

(4) Denials of requests must be accompanied by a written statement of the specific reasons therefor. Agencies, the office of the secretary of the senate, and the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives shall establish mechanisms for the most prompt possible review of decisions denying inspection, and such review shall be deemed completed at the end of the second business day following the denial of inspection and shall constitute final agency action or final action by the office of the secretary of the senate or the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives for the purposes of judicial review.

Sec. 3. RCW 42.56.570 and 2007 c 197 s 8 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The attorney general's office shall publish, and update when appropriate, a pamphlet, written in plain language, explaining this chapter.

(2) The attorney general, by February 1, 2006, shall adopt by rule ~~((an))~~ advisory model rules for state and local agencies, as defined in RCW 42.56.010, addressing the following subjects:

(a) Providing fullest assistance to requestors;

(b) Fulfilling large requests in the most efficient manner;

(c) Fulfilling requests for electronic records; and

(d) Any other issues pertaining to public disclosure as determined by the attorney general.

(3) The attorney general, in his or her discretion, may from time to time revise the model rule.

(4) Local agencies should consult the advisory model rules when establishing local ordinances for compliance with the requirements and responsibilities of this chapter.

(5) Until June 30, 2020, the attorney general must establish a consultation

program to provide information for developing best practices for local agencies requesting assistance in compliance with this chapter including, but not limited to: Responding to records requests, seeking additional public and private resources for developing and updating technology information services, and mitigating liability and costs of compliance. The attorney general may develop the program in conjunction with the advisory model rule and may collaborate with the chief information officer, the state archivist, and other relevant agencies and organizations in developing and managing the program. The program in this subsection ceases to exist June 30, 2020.

(6) Until June 30, 2020, the state archivist must offer and provide consultation and training services for local agencies on improving record retention practices.

Sec. 4. RCW 40.14.024 and 2008 c 328 s 6005 are each amended to read as follows:

The local government archives account is created in the state treasury. All receipts collected by the county auditors under RCW 40.14.027 and 36.22.175 for local government services, such as providing records ~~((scheduling))~~ schedule compliance, security microfilm inspection and storage, archival preservation, cataloging, and indexing for local government records and digital data and access to those records and data through the regional branch archives of the division of archives and records management, must be deposited into the account, and expenditures from the account may be used only for these purposes. ~~((During the 2007-2009 biennium, the legislature may transfer from the local government archives account to the Washington state heritage center account such amounts as reflect the excess fund balance in the account.))~~ Any amounts deposited in the account in accordance with RCW 36.22.175(4) may only be expended for the purposes authorized under that provision as follows: No more than fifty percent of funding may be used for the attorney general's consultation program and the state archivist's training services, and the remainder is to be used for the competitive grant program.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 5. A new section is added to chapter 40.14 RCW to read as follows:

(1) The division of archives and records management in the office of the secretary of state must establish and administer a competitive grant program for local agencies to improve technology information systems for public record retention, management, and disclosure, and any related training. The division of archives and records management may use up to six percent of amounts appropriated for the program for administration of the grant program.

(2) Any local agency may apply to the grant program. The division of archives and records management in the office of the secretary of state must award grants annually. The division of archives and records management must consult with the chief information officer to develop the criteria for grant recipient selection with a preference given to small local governmental agencies based on the applicant agency's need and ability to improve its information technology systems for public record retention, management, and disclosure. The division of archives and records management may award grants for specific hardware, software, equipment, technology services management and training needs, indexing for local records and digital data, and other resources for improving information technology systems. To the extent possible, information technology systems, processes, training, and other resources for improving information technology systems for records retention and distribution may be replicated and shared with other governmental entities. Grants are provided for one-time investments and are not an ongoing source of revenue for operation or management costs. A grantee may not supplant local funding with grant funding provided by the office of the secretary of state.

Sec. 6. RCW 36.22.175 and 2011 1st sp.s. c 50 s 931 are each amended to read as follows:

(1)(a) In addition to any other charge authorized by law, the county auditor shall charge a surcharge of one dollar per instrument for each document recorded. Revenue generated through this surcharge shall be transmitted monthly to the state treasurer for deposit in the local government archives account under RCW 40.14.024. These funds shall be used solely for providing records ~~((scheduling))~~ schedule compliance, security microfilm inspection and storage, archival preservation,

cataloging, and indexing for local government records and digital data and access to those records and data through the regional branch archives of the division of archives and records management.

(b) The division of archives and records management within the office of the secretary of state shall provide records management training for local governments and shall establish a competitive grant program to solicit and prioritize project proposals from local governments for potential funding to be paid for by funds from the auditor surcharge and tax warrant surcharge revenues. Application for specific projects may be made by local government agencies only. The state archivist in consultation with the advisory committee established under RCW 40.14.027 shall adopt rules governing project eligibility, evaluation, awarding of grants, and other criteria including requirements for records management training for grant recipients.

(2) The advisory committee established under RCW 40.14.027 shall review grant proposals and establish a prioritized list of projects to be considered for funding by January 1st of each even-numbered year, beginning in 2002. The evaluation of proposals and development of the prioritized list must be developed through open public meetings. Funding for projects shall be granted according to the ranking of each application on the prioritized list and projects will be funded only to the extent that funds are available. A grant award may have an effective date other than the date the project is placed on the prioritized list.

(3)(a) In addition to any other surcharge authorized by law, the county auditor shall charge a surcharge of one dollar per instrument for every document recorded after January 1, 2002. Revenue generated through this surcharge shall be transmitted to the state treasurer monthly for deposit in the local government archives account under RCW 40.14.024 to be used exclusively for: (i) The construction and improvement of a specialized regional facility located in eastern Washington designed to serve the archives, records management, and digital data management needs of local government; and (ii) payment of the certificate of participation issued for the Washington state heritage center to

the extent there is an excess fund balance in the account and fees generated under RCW 36.18.010 and 43.07.128 are insufficient to meet debt service payments on the certificate of participation.

(b) To the extent the facilities are used for the storage and retrieval of state agency records and digital data, that portion of the construction of such facilities used for state government records and data shall be supported by other charges and fees paid by state agencies and shall not be supported by the surcharge authorized in this subsection, except that to the extent there is an excess fund balance in the account and fees generated under RCW 36.18.010 and 43.07.128 are insufficient to meet debt service payments for the Washington state heritage center, the local government archives account under RCW 40.14.024 may be used for the Washington state heritage center.

(c) At such time that all debt service from construction of the specialized regional archive facility located in eastern Washington has been paid, fifty percent of the surcharge authorized by this subsection shall be reverted to the centennial document preservation and modernization account as prescribed in RCW 36.22.170 and fifty percent of the surcharge authorized by this section shall be reverted to the state treasurer for deposit in the public records efficiency, preservation, and access account to serve the archives, records management, and digital data management needs of local government, except that the state treasurer shall not revert funds to the centennial document preservation and modernization account and to the public records efficiency, preservation, and access account if fees generated under RCW 36.18.010 and 43.07.128 are insufficient to meet debt service payments on the Washington state heritage center.

(4) In addition to any other surcharge authorized by law, the county auditor shall charge a surcharge of one dollar per instrument for every document recorded. Revenue generated through this surcharge shall be transmitted to the state treasurer monthly for deposit in the local government archives account under RCW 40.14.024 to be used exclusively for the competitive grant program in section 5 of this act, and for the attorney general's consultation

program and state archivist's training services authorized in RCW 42.56.570.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 7. (1) The division of archives and records management in the office of the secretary of state must conduct a study to assess the feasibility of implementing a statewide open records portal through which a user can request and receive a response through a single internet web site relating to public records information.

(2) The division of archives and records management must hire a consultant to conduct the study.

(3) At a minimum, the report must include:

(a) The feasibility of Washington creating a central site from which a user can submit a records request and receive a timely response to such request;

(b) An examination of the experience in other states, including but not limited to the state of Utah, that have implemented an electronic open records portal;

(c) Whether the open records portals in other states serve as central repositories and archives for the purpose of all public records on behalf of local and state agencies;

(d) Whether other states' open records portals track and provide a timeline where each request is being responded to in the process;

(e) The cost of creating the open records portal in other states and the amount of funds local and state agencies or any other entities contributed to the start-up and ongoing costs to operate the open records portal;

(f) The length of time it took for other states to develop an open records portal from its initial start-up to its current full operation;

(g) The length of time it would take for Washington to develop and implement an open records portal from start-up to full operation that is similar to the portals located in other states;

(h) The length of time it would take for Washington to develop and implement an open records portal from start-up to full operation that would include: (i) The portal collecting, archiving, and holding all public records from local and state governmental agencies in Washington; (ii) the portal being capable

of allowing users to submit a public records request through a central site; and (iii) the records portal operating as a central site for answering and providing requested public records to a user;

(i) The estimated cost to develop and implement an open records portal that is: (i) Similar to the open records portals located in other states referenced and reviewed in (g) of this subsection; and (ii) a full open records portal pursuant to (h) of this subsection. In both instances, the costs must include costs associated with local and state governmental agencies in Washington participating in the portal and any needed supporting infrastructure, staffing, and training requirements;

(j) How much is charged and how fees are collected from a user requesting a public record through other states' open records portals;

(k) The feasibility of whether an open records portal created in Washington would be able to track all public records requests, when such requests for public records are made through the open records portal, and provide a timeline where each request is being responded to in the process;

(l) The feasibility of whether an open records portal created in Washington would be able to directly respond to answering a user's public records request and, if not, the feasibility of the portal tracking when a local or state agency responds to such a request and providing a timeline where each request is being responded to in the process;

(m) The feasibility of creating an open records portal in Washington that notifies a requestor that the request has been received and either immediately provides the requestor with a copy of the requested record, notifies the requestor that the record is not available, or notifies the requestor that because of the extraordinary request the record will be available on a date certain; and

(n) The allocation of liability between the agency operating an open records portal and any agency that provides records through the portal or accepts requests for public records through the portal in the event of litigation regarding denial of access to records or unreasonable estimate of time to produce records in response to a request.

(4) A report must be completed with findings and recommendations on the experience of the electronic open records portal created in other states and the feasibility of creating a central statewide open records portal in Washington. The report must be submitted to the governor, the appropriate committees of the legislature, and members of the stakeholder group in section 8 of this act, by September 1, 2018.

(5) This section expires December 31, 2018.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 8. (1) The division of archives and records management in the office of the secretary of state must convene a stakeholder group by September 1, 2017, to develop the initial scope and direction of the study in section 7 of this act.

(2) The stakeholder group must include seven members as provided in this subsection.

(a) The president of the senate shall appoint one member from each of the two largest caucuses of the senate.

(b) The speaker of the house of representatives shall appoint one member from each of the two largest caucuses of the house of representatives.

(c) The president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives, in consultation with the division of archives and records management, jointly shall appoint the remaining three members. The remaining three members must be representatives of the community who have experience in the retention and disclosure of public records.

(3) This section expires September 30, 2018.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 9. (1) The joint legislative audit and review committee must conduct a review of the attorney general's consultation program and the state archivist's training services created under section 3, chapter . . ., Laws of 2017 (section 3 of this act), and the local government competitive grant program created under section 5 of this act. The review must include:

(a)(i) Information on the number of local governments served, the types of consultation and training provided, and the implementation of any practices adopted from the attorney general's

consultation program and the state archivist's training services; and

(ii) The effectiveness of the consultation program and the training services in providing assistance for local governments; and

(b)(i) Information on the number of local governments that applied for and participated in the competitive grant program under section 5 of this act, the amount of funding awarded through the grant program, and how such funding was used; and

(ii) The effectiveness of the grant program in improving local government technology information systems for public records retention, management, disclosure, and training.

(2) By December 1, 2019, the joint legislative audit and review committee must report to the legislature on its findings from the review, including recommendations on whether the competitive grant program, the attorney general's consultation program, and the state archivist's training services should continue or be allowed to expire.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 10. Sections 5 and 6 of this act expire June 30, 2020.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 11. The sum of twenty-five thousand dollars, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is appropriated for the fiscal biennium ending June 30, 2019, from the general fund to the secretary of state solely for purposes of section 7 of this act."

Correct the title.

Representative Pollet moved the adoption of amendment (230) to the striking amendment (220):

On page 9, at the beginning of line 5 of the amendment, strike "and"

On page 9, line 6 of the amendment, after "(n)" insert "The feasibility of creating an open records portal through which a requestor can make a request and receive a response through a single internet web site relating to public records information, and the feasibility of agencies managing internet web sites to make public access easier and reduce the number of requests related to the same topic through best practices by offering to post different categories of requested records on the web site in a manner that is responsive to records requests; and

(o)"

On page 9, line 15 of the amendment, after "Washington" insert ", as well as recommendations and best management practices for agencies to post records that are responsive to records requests on an agency internet web site

and take into consideration various categories of records and agency capacities in order to provide broader public access to records of public interest and to reduce the number of requests relating to the same topic"

Representatives Pollet and Nealey spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment to the striking amendment.

Amendment (230) to the striking amendment (220) was adopted.

Representatives Koster spoke in favor of the adoption of the striking amendment as amended.

Amendment (220), as amended, was adopted.

The bill was ordered engrossed.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Nealey and McBride spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 1594.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Substitute House Bill No. 1594, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 79; Nays, 18; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Calder, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Haler, Hansen, Harris, Hayes, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, Macri, Manweller, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Buys, Griffey, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Holy, Kraft, Kretz, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, Pike, Shea, Stambaugh, Taylor, Van Werven, Vick, Volz and Young.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1594, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1595, by Representatives Nealey, McBride, Senn, Springer, Koster, Klippert, Dye, Schmick, J. Walsh, Haler, Manweller, Harris, Dent,

Peterson, Bergquist, Gregerson, Clibborn, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Dolan, Wilcox, Lytton, Griffey, Hayes, Muri, Goodman, Robinson, Sells, Steele, Kraft, Smith, Tharinger, Stanford, Kloba, Jinkins, Hargrove, Slatter and Kagi

Concerning costs associated with responding to public records requests.

The bill was read the second time.

Representative Springer moved the adoption of the striking amendment (177):

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

"**Sec. 1.** RCW 42.56.070 and 2005 c 274 s 284 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Each agency, in accordance with published rules, shall make available for public inspection and copying all public records, unless the record falls within the specific exemptions of subsection ~~((6+))~~ (8) of this section, this chapter, or other statute which exempts or prohibits disclosure of specific information or records. To the extent required to prevent an unreasonable invasion of personal privacy interests protected by this chapter, an agency shall delete identifying details in a manner consistent with this chapter when it makes available or publishes any public record; however, in each case, the justification for the deletion shall be explained fully in writing.

(2) For informational purposes, each agency shall publish and maintain a current list containing every law, other than those listed in this chapter, that the agency believes exempts or prohibits disclosure of specific information or records of the agency. An agency's failure to list an exemption shall not affect the efficacy of any exemption.

(3) Each local agency shall maintain and make available for public inspection and copying a current index providing identifying information as to the following records issued, adopted, or promulgated after January 1, 1973:

(a) Final opinions, including concurring and dissenting opinions, as well as orders, made in the adjudication of cases;

(b) Those statements of policy and interpretations of policy, statute, and

the Constitution which have been adopted by the agency;

(c) Administrative staff manuals and instructions to staff that affect a member of the public;

(d) Planning policies and goals, and interim and final planning decisions;

(e) Factual staff reports and studies, factual consultant's reports and studies, scientific reports and studies, and any other factual information derived from tests, studies, reports, or surveys, whether conducted by public employees or others; and

(f) Correspondence, and materials referred to therein, by and with the agency relating to any regulatory, supervisory, or enforcement responsibilities of the agency, whereby the agency determines, or opines upon, or is asked to determine or opine upon, the rights of the state, the public, a subdivision of state government, or of any private party.

(4) A local agency need not maintain such an index, if to do so would be unduly burdensome, but it shall in that event:

(a) Issue and publish a formal order specifying the reasons why and the extent to which compliance would unduly burden or interfere with agency operations; and

(b) Make available for public inspection and copying all indexes maintained for agency use.

(5) Each state agency shall, by rule, establish and implement a system of indexing for the identification and location of the following records:

(a) All records issued before July 1, 1990, for which the agency has maintained an index;

(b) Final orders entered after June 30, 1990, that are issued in adjudicative proceedings as defined in RCW 34.05.010 and that contain an analysis or decision of substantial importance to the agency in carrying out its duties;

(c) Declaratory orders entered after June 30, 1990, that are issued pursuant to RCW 34.05.240 and that contain an analysis or decision of substantial importance to the agency in carrying out its duties;

(d) Interpretive statements as defined in RCW 34.05.010 that were entered after June 30, 1990; and

(e) Policy statements as defined in RCW 34.05.010 that were entered after June 30, 1990.

Rules establishing systems of indexing shall include, but not be limited to, requirements for the form and content of the index, its location and availability to the public, and the schedule for revising or updating the index. State agencies that have maintained indexes for records issued before July 1, 1990, shall continue to make such indexes available for public inspection and copying. Information in such indexes may be incorporated into indexes prepared pursuant to this subsection. State agencies may satisfy the requirements of this subsection by making available to the public indexes prepared by other parties but actually used by the agency in its operations. State agencies shall make indexes available for public inspection and copying. State agencies may charge a fee to cover the actual costs of providing individual mailed copies of indexes.

(6) A public record may be relied on, used, or cited as precedent by an agency against a party other than an agency and it may be invoked by the agency for any other purpose only if:

(a) It has been indexed in an index available to the public; or

(b) Parties affected have timely notice (actual or constructive) of the terms thereof.

(7) Each agency (~~shall~~) may establish, maintain, and make available for public inspection and copying a statement of the actual (~~per page cost or other costs, if any,~~) costs that it charges for providing photocopies or electronically produced copies, of public records and a statement of the factors and manner used to determine the actual (~~per page cost or other costs, if any,~~) costs. Any statement of costs may be adopted by an agency only after providing notice and public hearing.

(a) (i) In determining the actual (~~per page~~) cost for providing (~~photocopies~~) copies of public records, an agency may include all costs directly incident to copying such public records including:

(A) The actual cost of the paper and the per page cost for use of agency copying equipment; and

(B) The actual cost of the electronic production or file transfer of the record and the use of any cloud-based data storage and processing service.

(ii) In determining other actual costs for providing ~~((photocopies))~~ copies of public records, an agency may include all costs directly incident to:

(A) Shipping such public records, including the cost of postage or delivery charges and the cost of any container or envelope used; and

(B) Transmitting such records in an electronic format, including the cost of any transmission charge and use of any physical media device provided by the agency.

(b) In determining the actual ~~((per page cost or other))~~ costs for providing copies of public records, an agency may not include staff salaries, benefits, or other general administrative or overhead charges, unless those costs are directly related to the actual cost of copying the public records. Staff time to copy and ~~((mail))~~ send the requested public records may be included in an agency's costs.

~~(8) ((An agency need not calculate the actual per page cost or other costs it charges for providing photocopies of public records if to do so would be unduly burdensome, but in that event: The agency may not charge in excess of fifteen cents per page for photocopies of public records or for the use of agency equipment to photocopy public records and the actual postage or delivery charge and the cost of any container or envelope used to mail the public records to the requestor.~~

~~(9))~~ This chapter shall not be construed as giving authority to any agency, the office of the secretary of the senate, or the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives to give, sell or provide access to lists of individuals requested for commercial purposes, and agencies, the office of the secretary of the senate, and the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives shall not do so unless specifically authorized or directed by law: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That lists of applicants for professional licenses and of professional licensees shall be made available to those professional associations or educational organizations recognized by their professional licensing or examination

board, upon payment of a reasonable charge therefor: PROVIDED FURTHER, That such recognition may be refused only for a good cause pursuant to a hearing under the provisions of chapter 34.05 RCW, the administrative procedure act.

Sec. 2. RCW 42.56.080 and 2016 c 163 s 3 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) A public records request must be for identifiable records. A request for all or substantially all records prepared, owned, used, or retained by an agency is not a valid request for identifiable records under this chapter, provided that a request for all records regarding a particular topic or containing a particular keyword or name shall not be considered a request for all of an agency's records.

(2) Public records shall be available for inspection and copying, and agencies shall, upon request for identifiable public records, make them promptly available to any person including, if applicable, on a partial or installment basis as records that are part of a larger set of requested records are assembled or made ready for inspection or disclosure. Agencies shall not deny a request for identifiable public records solely on the basis that the request is overbroad. Agencies shall not distinguish among persons requesting records, and such persons shall not be required to provide information as to the purpose for the request except to establish whether inspection and copying would violate RCW 42.56.070 ~~((+9))~~ (8) or 42.56.240(14), or other statute which exempts or prohibits disclosure of specific information or records to certain persons. Agency facilities shall be made available to any person for the copying of public records except when and to the extent that this would unreasonably disrupt the operations of the agency. Agencies shall honor requests received in person during an agency's normal office hours, or by mail or email, for identifiable public records unless exempted by provisions of this chapter. No official format is required for making a records request; however, agencies may recommend that requestors submit requests using an agency provided form or web page.

(3) An agency may deny a bot request that is one of multiple requests from the requestor to the agency within a twenty-four hour period, if the agency establishes that responding to the

multiple requests would cause excessive interference with other essential functions of the agency. For purposes of this subsection, "bot request" means a request for public records that an agency reasonably believes was automatically generated by a computer program or script.

Sec. 3. RCW 42.56.120 and 2016 c 163 s 4 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) No fee shall be charged for the inspection of public records or locating public documents and making them available for copying, except as provided in RCW 42.56.240(14) and subsection (3) of this section. A reasonable charge may be imposed for providing copies of public records and for the use by any person of agency equipment or equipment of the office of the secretary of the senate or the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives to copy public records, which charges shall not exceed the amount necessary to reimburse the agency, the office of the secretary of the senate, or the office of the chief clerk of the house of representatives for its actual costs directly incident to such copying. When calculating any fees authorized under this section, an agency shall use the most reasonable cost-efficient method available to the agency as part of its normal operations. If any agency translates a record into an alternative electronic format at the request of a requestor, the copy created does not constitute a new public record for purposes of this chapter. Scanning paper records to make electronic copies of such records is a method of copying paper records and does not amount to the creation of a new public record.

(2) (a) Agency charges for ~~((photocopies shall))~~ actual costs may only be imposed in accordance with the ((actual per page cost or other)) costs established and published by the agency pursuant to RCW 42.56.070(7), and in accordance with the statement of factors and manner used to determine the actual costs. In no event may an agency charge a per page cost greater than the actual ~~((per page))~~ cost as established and published by the agency.

(b) An agency need not calculate the actual costs it charges for providing public records if it has rules or regulations declaring the reasons doing so would be unduly burdensome. To the extent the agency has not determined the actual ~~((per page cost for photocopies~~

~~ef))~~ costs of copying public records, the agency may not charge in excess of:

(i) Fifteen cents per page for photocopies of public records, printed copies of electronic public records when requested by the person requesting records, or for the use of agency equipment to photocopy public records;

(ii) Ten cents per page for public records scanned into an electronic format or for the use of agency equipment to scan the records;

(iii) Five cents per each four electronic files or attachment uploaded to email, cloud-based data storage service, or other means of electronic delivery; and

(iv) Ten cents per gigabyte for the transmission of public records in an electronic format or for the use of agency equipment to send the records electronically. The agency shall take reasonable steps to provide the records in the most efficient manner available to the agency in its normal operations; and

(v) The actual cost of any digital storage media or device provided by the agency, the actual cost of any container or envelope used to mail the copies to the requestor, and the actual postage or delivery charge.

(c) The charges in (b) of this subsection may be combined to the extent that more than one type of charge applies to copies produced in response to a particular request.

(d) An agency may charge a flat fee of up to two dollars for any request as an alternative to fees authorized under (a) or (b) of this subsection. An additional flat fee shall not be charged for any installment after the first installment of a request produced in installments. An agency that has elected to charge the flat fee in this subsection for an initial installment may not charge the fees authorized under (a) or (b) of this subsection on subsequent installments.

(e) An agency shall not impose copying charges under this section for access to or downloading of records that the agency routinely posts on its public internet web site prior to receipt of a request unless the requestor has specifically requested that the agency provide copies of such records through other means.

(f) A requestor may ask an agency to provide a summary of the applicable

charges and may revise the request to reduce the number of records and reduce the applicable charges.

(3)(a)(i) In addition to the charge imposed for providing copies of public records and for the use by any person of agency equipment copying costs, an agency may include a customized service charge. A customized service charge may only be imposed if the agency estimates that the request would require the use of information technology expertise to prepare data compilations, or provide customized electronic access services when such compilations and customized access services are not used by the agency for other agency purposes.

(ii) The customized service charge may reimburse the agency up to the actual cost of providing the services in this subsection.

(b) An agency may not assess a customized service charge unless the agency has notified the requestor of the customized service charge to be applied to the request, including an explanation of why the customized service charge applies, a description of the specific expertise, and a reasonable estimate cost of the charge. The notice also must provide the requestor the opportunity to amend his or her request in order to avoid or reduce the cost of a customized service charge.

(4) An agency may require a deposit in an amount not to exceed ten percent of the estimated cost of providing copies for a request, including a customized service charge. If an agency makes a request available on a partial or installment basis, the agency may charge for each part of the request as it is provided. If an installment of a records request is not claimed or reviewed, the agency is not obligated to fulfill the balance of the request. An agency may waive any charge assessed for a request pursuant to agency rules and regulations. An agency may enter into any contract, memorandum of understanding, or other agreement with a requestor that provides an alternative fee arrangement to the charges authorized in this section, or in response to a voluminous or frequently occurring request.

Sec. 4. RCW 42.56.130 and 2005 c 274 s 286 are each amended to read as follows:

The provisions of RCW 42.56.070(7) and (8) and 42.56.120 that establish or allow

agencies to establish the costs charged for photocopies or electronically produced copies of public records do not supersede other statutory provisions, other than in this chapter, authorizing or governing fees for copying public records.

Sec. 5. RCW 42.56.550 and 2011 c 273 s 1 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Upon the motion of any person having been denied an opportunity to inspect or copy a public record by an agency, the superior court in the county in which a record is maintained may require the responsible agency to show cause why it has refused to allow inspection or copying of a specific public record or class of records. The burden of proof shall be on the agency to establish that refusal to permit public inspection and copying is in accordance with a statute that exempts or prohibits disclosure in whole or in part of specific information or records.

(2) Upon the motion of any person who believes that an agency has not made a reasonable estimate of the time that the agency requires to respond to a public record request or a reasonable estimate of the charges to produce copies of public records, the superior court in the county in which a record is maintained may require the responsible agency to show that the estimate it provided is reasonable. The burden of proof shall be on the agency to show that the estimate it provided is reasonable.

(3) Judicial review of all agency actions taken or challenged under RCW 42.56.030 through 42.56.520 shall be de novo. Courts shall take into account the policy of this chapter that free and open examination of public records is in the public interest, even though such examination may cause inconvenience or embarrassment to public officials or others. Courts may examine any record in camera in any proceeding brought under this section. The court may conduct a hearing based solely on affidavits.

(4) Any person who prevails against an agency in any action in the courts seeking the right to inspect or copy any public record or the right to receive a response to a public record request within a reasonable amount of time shall be awarded all costs, including reasonable attorney fees, incurred in connection with such legal action. In addition, it shall be within the

discretion of the court to award such person an amount not to exceed one hundred dollars for each day that he or she was denied the right to inspect or copy said public record.

(5) For actions under this section against counties, the venue provisions of RCW 36.01.050 apply.

(6) Actions under this section must be filed within one year of the agency's claim of exemption or the last production of a record on a partial or installment basis."

Correct the title.

Representatives Springer, Nealey and Pollet spoke in favor of the adoption of the striking amendment.

Amendment (177) was adopted.

The bill was ordered engrossed.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representative Nealey spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed House Bill No. 1595.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed House Bill No. 1595, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 75; Nays, 22; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Haler, Hansen, Harris, Hayes, Hudgins, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, Macri, Manweller, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Vick, Wylie and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Buys, DeBolt, Griffey, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Holy, Irwin, Kretz, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, Orcutt, Pike, Sawyer, Shea, Stambaugh, Taylor, Van Werven, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox and Young.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1595, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1612, by Representatives Orwall, Harris, Jinkins, Goodman, Haler, Robinson, Fey, Kilduff and McBride

Creating a suicide-safer homes project account to support prevention efforts and develop strategies for reducing access to lethal means.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Second Substitute House Bill No. 1612 was substituted for House Bill No. 1612 and the second substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1612 was read the second time.

Representative Orwall moved the adoption of amendment (127):

On page 2, line 19, after "work." Insert "To the extent possible, the task force membership should include representatives from geographically diverse and priority populations, including tribal populations."

On page 5, line 4, after "~~(consult with)~~" insert ", in consultation with the department of health,"

On page 8, beginning on line 34, after "dentist" strike "or dental hygienist"

Representatives Orwall and Rodne spoke in favor of the adoption of the amendment.

Amendment (127) was adopted.

The bill was ordered engrossed.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Orwall, Rodne and McCabe spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill No. 1612.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill No. 1612, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 88; Nays, 9; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey,

Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Dent, Holy, Kraft, Kretz, Maycumber, McCaslin, Shea, Taylor and Volz.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

ENGROSSED SECOND SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1612, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1347, by Representatives Riccelli, Holy and Ormsby

Concerning the creation of a countywide port district within a county containing no port districts.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1347 was substituted for House Bill No. 1347 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1347 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Riccelli and Holy spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1347.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1347, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 81; Nays, 16; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, Macri, Manweller, McBride, McCabe, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Sells, Senn, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Buys, Caldier, Condotta, DeBolt, Griffey, Harmsworth, Kretz, MacEwen, Maycumber, McCaslin, Orcutt, Pike, Shea, Taylor, Van Werven and Vick.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1347, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1683, by Representatives Appleton and Griffey

Addressing sewer service within urban growth areas.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1683 was substituted for House Bill No. 1683 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1683 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Appleton and Maycumber spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1683.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1683, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1683, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1578, by Representatives Dent, Ortiz-Self, McBride, Lovick, Dye, Harris and Griffey

Concerning irrigation district authority.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representative Dent spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of House Bill No. 1578.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of House Bill No. 1578, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 97; Nays, 0; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, Condotta, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Taylor, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1578, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1420, by Representatives Hudgins, MacEwen and Bergquist

Concerning theatrical wrestling.

The bill was read the second time.

There being no objection, Substitute House Bill No. 1420 was substituted for House Bill No. 1420 and the substitute bill was placed on the second reading calendar.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1420 was read the second time.

There being no objection, the rules were suspended, the second reading considered the third and the bill was placed on final passage.

Representatives Hudgins, J. Walsh and Volz spoke in favor of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker (Representative Orwall presiding) stated the question before the House to be the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1420.

ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll on the final passage of Substitute House Bill No. 1420, and the bill passed the House by the following vote: Yeas, 95; Nays, 2; Absent, 0; Excused, 1.

Voting yea: Representatives Appleton, Barkis, Bergquist, Blake, Buys, Caldier, Chapman, Clibborn, Cody, DeBolt, Dent, Doglio, Dolan, Dye, Farrell, Fey, Fitzgibbon, Frame, Goodman, Graves, Gregerson, Griffey, Haler, Hansen, Hargrove, Harmsworth, Harris, Hayes, Holy, Hudgins, Irwin, Jenkin, Jinkins, Johnson, Kagi, Kilduff, Kirby, Klippert, Kloba, Koster, Kraft, Kretz, Kristiansen, Lovick, Lytton, MacEwen, Macri, Manweller, Maycumber, McBride, McCabe, McCaslin, McDonald, Morris, Muri, Nealey, Orcutt, Ormsby, Ortiz-Self, Orwall, Pellicciotti, Peterson, Pettigrew, Pike, Pollet, Reeves, Riccelli, Robinson, Rodne, Ryu, Santos, Sawyer, Schmick, Sells, Senn, Shea, Slatter, Smith, Springer, Stambaugh, Stanford, Steele, Stokesbary, Stonier, Sullivan, Tarleton, Tharinger, Van Werven, Vick, Volz, J. Walsh, Wilcox, Wylie, Young and Mr. Speaker.

Voting nay: Representatives Condotta and Taylor.

Excused: Representative Chandler.

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL NO. 1420, having received the necessary constitutional majority, was declared passed.

There being no objection, the House advanced to the eighth order of business.

MOTION

There being no objection, the Committee on Rules was relieved of the following bills and the bills were placed on the second reading calendar:

- HOUSE BILL NO. 1043
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1063
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1070
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1089
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1144
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1168
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1170
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1196
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1266
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1280
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1375
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1410
- HOUSE BILL NO. 1492

HOUSE BILL NO. 1495
HOUSE BILL NO. 1503
HOUSE BILL NO. 1506
HOUSE BILL NO. 1512
HOUSE BILL NO. 1541
HOUSE BILL NO. 1561
HOUSE BILL NO. 1566
HOUSE BILL NO. 1715
HOUSE BILL NO. 1739
HOUSE BILL NO. 1787
HOUSE BILL NO. 1814
HOUSE BILL NO. 1815
HOUSE BILL NO. 1816
HOUSE BILL NO. 1831
HOUSE BILL NO. 1877

HOUSE BILL NO. 1929
HOUSE BILL NO. 1987
HOUSE BILL NO. 2126
HOUSE JOINT MEMORIAL NO. 4011

There being no objection, the House adjourned until 9:00 a.m., March 6, 2017, the 57th Day of the Regular Session.

FRANK CHOPP, Speaker

BERNARD DEAN, Chief Clerk